References to Lowesmoor Chapel
Worcester Journal

Thursday 28 December 1837

Countess of Huntingdon's Chapel Lowesmoor

The above chapel will be opened (DV) on Sunday next, December 31st, when two sermons will be preached by the Reverend E. Lake.

Hymns, appropriated for the occasion, will be sung, and a collection made after each sermon, for defraying the expenses incurred in fitting up the chapel…

Worcester Journal 

Thursday 11 October 1838

In consequence of the increase in the congregation of the  Rev E Lake attending Lowesmoor chapel, it has been found necessary to extend the accommodation by erecting a gallery capable of holding 120? persons; thus a considerable number of free sittings are added to those which before existed.
Bentley 1840

Lady Huntingdon's Chapel in Lowesmoor, opposite the canal basin, which they purchased from the Wesleyan Methodists for £500, though the building of the chapel cost that body £910. 6s. 9d. in 1823.  During the year 1839, the body of this chapel has been pewed , and a deep front gallery added, and an excellent Sunday School, and house for the minister, have been erected adjoining the chapel, together with other improvements which have cost £940.   The congregation elect the minister; the Rev. Edward Lake, who officiated thirty years at Birdport-street chapel, is the present  pastor; service commences every Sunday morning at half-past ten, at 3 in the afternoon, and 6 in the evening; and on Thursday evening at 7.  The chapel will seat 500, of which number about 200 are free, and besides the before-mentioned Sunday School they have one at Tallow Hill, on the other side of the canal.

Census of Religious Worship 1850

Lowesmoor Chapel  HO129.387.2.3.12

Countess of Huntingdon's Connexion

Erected 1823, not a separated building but used extensively for worship.   

Sittings: Free 101, Other 314, Free space or standing room for 160.  

On 30 March: Morning, General Congregation 79, Sunday Scholars 25, Total 104

Afternoon: General Congregation 37, Sunday Scholars 35, Total 72

Evening: General Congregation 190

Average over 12 months

Morning: General Congregation 90, Sunday Scholars 30, Total 120

Afternoon: General Congregation 40, Sunday Scholars 45, Total 85

Evening: General Congregation 200

Remarks: Being without a Pastor, the cause is low.   The Chapel was built by the Wesleyans and sold to the present Trust in 1838 for the use of the congregation who seceded from Birdport in 1837. 

Signed Thomas Cook, Trustee [according to Billing's Directory, grocer, tea dealer and dealer in foreign and British spirits.
Worcester Chronicle 

April 18 1860

Re-opening of Lowesmoor Chapel

Lady Huntingdon's Chapel in Lowesmoor, which has for some time past been closed whilst undergoing extensive alterations and improvements, was re-opened on Wednesday last, when sermons were preached in aid of the restoration funds.   

One great public advantage in connection with the changes that have taken place is the widening of the footpath in front of the chapel.   The chapel was a plain brick building with gable ends, having a small piece of ground in front enclosed within a dilapidated palisading.  The pavement at that spot was narrow, a circumstance which, considering the traffic between the railway station and the city, was attended with considerable inconvenience  the palisades have now been removed and the width of the pavement increased about four feet.  The front has been renovated with stucco and stone in the Italian style, and within the porch a screen has been erected to prevent annoyance to the congregation from draught or inclemency of  weather.  The chapel is heated by means of Haden's (Trowbridge) apparatus, which is so arranged as to afford moderate and equal warmth to all parts of the building.  The pews have been stained and varnished and means have been taken to increase accommodation.  A handsome new pulpit and communion rails have been put up.   The ceiling is now ornamented with a cornice.   The colouring of the walls is French grey.   In the centre of the ceiling there is a large light.   A handsome gilt chandelier of forty lights is suspended below the window and furnished abundant light at night.   Behind the chapel a very commodious school-room has been recently erected.   This is separated from the body of the chapel by doors, so constructed that they may be withdrawn.   The school-room is in the rear of the pulpit, and when the communication is opened any person sitting within that apartment may hear the service.   The school will be occupied by the children on Sundays, so that they may not disturb the congregation.   Mr Joseph Wood, the City Sheriff, has been both architect and builder, and too much praise cannot be awarded to him for the manner in which he has executed the works.

Of course a very heavy outlay has been incurred, to meet which several donations have already been received….
Noake 'Worcester Sects' 1861

[page 339] A small chapel was erected in Lowesmoor in the year 1823, by the Wesleyans, chiefly for the use of the boatmen on the canal and the men employed in the wharf.   The late Miss Knapp (previously mentioned) was a great promoter of that undertaking, but it did not succeed, and when the late Mr Lake retired from Birdport (Countess of Huntingdon's) chapel and formed a second congregation of Huntingdonians, the latter purchased the Lowesmoor chapel, which was then abandoned by the Wesleyans; that was in the year 1836; it is still occupied by the congregation who separated from Birdport.

[page 364] With regard to the Lowesmoor Chapel, at the death of Mr Lake he was succeeded by Mr E. Bayfield, Mr Woods, Mr Sanderson and Mr Henry Wardley, the present minister.   A considerable improvement was made in the chapel in 1860, and it was reopened on April 11th of that year.  The front was renovated, and just within the porch a screen was erected to prevent annoyance to the congregation from draughts or inclemency of the weather.   The chapel was heated by means of Haden's (Trowbridge) apparatus, so arranged as to afford moderate and equal warmth to all parts of the building.   The pews were stained and varnished and means taken to increase the sitting accommodation.   A handsome new pulpit and communion rails were provided, and the space within the rails and pulpit stairs neatly carpeted.   The colouring of the walls is French grey.  In the centre of the ceiling is a large ground-glass light, of similar principle to that in [page 365] the new picture gallery at Witley Court, and this is covered outside with a skylight.   A very handsome gilt chandelier of forty lights is suspended below the window, and furnishes abundant and effective light.   Behind the chapel is a commodious school-room recently erected, which may be used for the congregation during divine service.   This is separated from the body of the chapel by temporary partitions on a novel principle, and so constructed that they might be withdrawn.   The school-room is immediately in the rear of the pulpit, and when communication is opened, in the manner described, any person sitting within that apartment may hear distinctly the whole of the service.   The school is occupied by the children on Sundays, so that they may not disturb the congregation.   Mr Joseph Wood (then Sheriff, now Mayor of the city) was both architect and builder, and too much praise cannot be awarded to the firm of Wood and Son for the manner in which they executed the works.   The congregations at the re-opening were numerous….
